
 

 Council Meeting Agenda – April 19, 2021              1 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR VIRTUAL COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, April 19, 2021 @ 8:00PM 

  
Before each regular virtual council meeting there will be a standing pre-council work session 
from 7:30PM to 8:00PM. Steps for accessing Zoom follow the Agenda. 
 

1. Call to Order: 8:00PM 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

4. Approval of Agenda 
 

5. Consent Agenda 
The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be 
dealt with by one Board motion (roll-call vote) without discussion. Any person, whether Board Member, staff or 
public may ask that item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be placed elsewhere on the regular agenda for 
discussion. All such requests will be granted.  

B.  Regular Virtual Council Minutes – April 5, 2021 
C.  Vendor’s List $257,185.79 

 
6. Unfinished Business  

D.  Schedule another Public Hearing for Rental Inspection Program 
E.  Riverside Park Improvements (postpone) 
 

7. New Business 
Items for Action: 
F. Resolution 2021-07 Appointing Sarah Dvoracek as the Planning and Zoning Administrator  
G. Resolution 2021-08 Appointing Sarah Dvoracek as the Airport Manager  
H. Resolution 2021-09 Appointing Sarah Dvoracek as the Street Administrator  
 I. Resolution 2021-10 To Extend Waiving Penalty/Late Fees for Utility Billing  
J. Request to Amend the Department of Public Works Job Description (will be emailed later) 
 

8. Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
K.  Accounts Payable Report (4/6/2021 – 4/19/2021) 
L. Payroll Reports (4/6/2021 – 4/19/2021) 
M. Summary of all Funds – March 2021  
 
 
 

http://www.evart.org/


 

 Council Meeting Agenda – April 19, 2021              2 

 

9. City Attorney Report/Comment 
 

10. City Clerk Report/Comment 
     N. Boards and Commissions  
 
11. City Manager Report/Comment 

           O. Perchlorate – FYI 
           P. Great Assets Require Great Rates – Rate Study Article – FYI  
           Q. Memo from Nestle Water – FYI  
           R. Certified Local Government Certification – FYI  
 

12. Finance Director Report/Comment 
          S. Finance Directors’ Monthly Report – March 2021 
  

13. Department of Public Works Report/Comment 
           T. Department of Public Works Monthly Report – March 2021 
 

14. Police Department Report/Comment 
U. Police Department’s Monthly Report – March 2021  
 

15. Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 
 

16. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

17. Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Documents to be signed after council meeting:  

Resolution 2021-07: Appointing Sarah Dvoracek as the Planning and Zoning Administrator 
Resolution 2021-08: Appointing Sarah Dvoracek as the Airport Manager   
Resolution 2021-09: Appointing Sarah Dvoracek as the Street Administrator 
Resolution 2021-10: To Extend Waiving Penalty/Late Fees for Utility Billing 



 

 Council Meeting Agenda – April 19, 2021              3 

 

Zoom Virtual Meeting: How to Join In 
 
Join Using a Link 

1. Open your web browser 

2. Type in the url: 

 

To be announced the day of the council meeting  

 

This will open the meeting prompt loading page for the meeting 

Entering the Meeting 

Once you have accessed the meeting using your web browser 

1. You will be asked to Open Zoom 

 
 

The language of this pop up notification may be different depending on your browser 

 

2. Click Open Zoom 

 

 
 

3. Click Join with Computer Audio 

 
 

a. You can test the audio before joining by clicking Test Speaker and Microphone 

 

 

You are now in the meeting. If you join prior to the start time you will be in a digital waiting room. Five minutes prior to 

the start of the meeting, the moderator will grant you access.  



 

 Council Meeting Agenda – April 19, 2021              4 

 

Join via Phone 

1. On your phone, dial the teleconferencing number provided in your invite Dial 1-888-788-0099 

2. Enter the Meeting ID number when prompted using your key/dial pad Meeting Id: to be announced  

 

You will be prompted to enter your unique participant ID. This only applies if you have joined on the computer or mobile 
device or are a panelist in a webinar. Press # to skip.  
 

You are now in the meeting. If you join prior to the start time you will put on hold. Five minutes prior to the start of the 

meeting, the moderator will grant you access. 

 

To Participate in Public Commentary 
 

Viewing via URL link 

• For those watching our virtual meeting on their device, if you wish to ask a question or make a statement, 

please type your question in the Chat provided.  It will then be read to the council.  

• If you wish to speak a statement or question via your device’s microphone or audio, please indicate so in the 

chat window.  The moderator will unmute your audio when it is your turn to speak.  

•  Video questions, at this time, are not available. 

Teleconferencing  

• If you wish to speak during public comment please press *9 on your telephone keypad, which will alert the 

moderator of your desire to speak. 

• Please ensure you are in a quiet location and mute any video streams so all will be able to hear your comments.  

• When it is your turn to speak, the moderator will identify you by the last four digits of your phone number.  

 

 
 



1 
 

Evart City Council Virtual Minutes 4.5.2021 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR VIRTUAL COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday April 5, 2021 @ 8:00PM 
 
 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Chris Emerick at 8:00pm. 
 
Present (via roll call): Sean Duffy, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
             Dan Elliott, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
             Chris Emerick, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
             Matt Hildebrand, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
             Sandra Szeliga, City of Evart, Osceola County MI, attending remotely 
 
Present: City Manager Sarah Dvoracek, Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Works Mark Wilson, 
Finance Director/Treasurer Pepper Lockhart, Communications Director (Meeting Host) Melissa Rohen, 
City Attorney James White, Chief of Police John Beam Jr., City Clerk Kathy Fiebig 
 
Guests (per Zoom ID): Evart Farmers Market, Laurie Chase, Cathie Crew, Janet’s iPad, Ralph Carlson, 
Sarah Molenaar 
 
Public Hearing: Second/Final reading of the Recodification of City Ordinances 
Mayor Emerick opened the Public Hearing at 8:02pm.  There were no public comments.  Mayor Emerick 
closed the Public Hearing at 8:04pm. 
 
Citizens’ Comments: Sarah Molenaar hopes that the City will continue to broadcast meetings via Zoom 
after the pandemic ends as it is so convenient for the public. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
Mr. Wilson requested that a discussion about a community clean up day be added after letter K. 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the agenda with the addition.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion 
passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda 
B. Regular Virtual Council Minutes – March 15, 2021 
C. Vendor’s List $52,429.14 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Support by Mayor Emerick.  
Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
 
Unfinished Business 
D. Schedule another Public Hearing for Rental Inspection Program 
After discussion, it was agreed to hold two focus groups, one with tenants and the other with landlords, 
before scheduling a second hearing. 
E. Riverside Park Improvements (postpone) 
F. Appointments to Boards and Commissions  
Ms. Fiebig reminded council that there have been inconsistencies in the board and commission 
appointments for a number of years and recommended the following appointments in order to correct 
the issues: 



2 
 

Evart City Council Virtual Minutes 4.5.2021 
 

Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to appoint Jason O’Dell and Shannon Schmidt to the Downtown Development 
Authority Board of Directors (terms expire in 2021).  Support by Mayor Emerick.  Motion passed with a 
roll call vote; all were in favor. 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to appoint Ruth Ann Northon and Rebecca Tea to the Planning Commission 
(as already serving).  Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to reappoint Jason O’Dell to a three-year term (expiring in 2024) on the 
Planning Commission, as recommended by the Commission in a meeting on December 28, 2020.  
Support by Mr. Elliott.  Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to appoint the following people to the Housing Commission:  Keith Halifax to 
a one-year term expiring in 2022, Donald Maddern to a two-year term expiring in 2023, Mary Hooper to 
a three-year term expiring in 2024, Joyce Huston to a four-year term expiring in 2025 and Sandra Szeliga 
to a five-year term expiring in 2026.  Support by Mayor Emerick.  Motion passed with a roll call vote; all 
were in favor. 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to appoint Donald Maddern and Karen Higgins to two-year terms (expiring in 
2023) on the Board of Review.  Record shall reflect that Ralph Carlson’s term will also end in 2023.  
Support by Mayor Emerick.  Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to appoint Jennifer Joyce to a two-year term (expiring in 2023) and Kathy 
Fiebig to a three-year term (expiring in 2024) on the Historic District Commission.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  
Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to appoint Jane Hutchinson to a three-year term (expiring in 2024) on the 
Library Board.  Support by Mayor Emerick.  Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
 
New Business 
Items for Action 
G. Final Amendment to Adopt Recodification of City Ordinance with Revisions - Ordinance 2021-01 
Motion by Mr. Elliott to pass Ordinance 2021-01 as presented.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand.  Motion 
passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
H. Resolution 2021-06 – Approving Emergency Sewer Repair on S. Oak St. - $4,502.22 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve Resolution 2021-06.  Support by Ms. Szeliga. Motion passed with a 
roll call vote.  All were in favor. 
I. Bid for the Exterior Painting of the Depot 
Ms. Dvoracek reminded council that the Depot was last renovated in the 1990’s and shared photos 
showing the current deterioration of the exterior surfaces.  If not addressed, the project will continue to 
rise in cost.  The bid presented is from a firm with extensive experience working on historic properties 
that is lead paint certified.  Mr. Elliott pointed out that this bid represents roughly 10% of what the City 
has already invested in the building and agrees that deferring the work will prove even more costly.  Mr. 
Duffy remembers the earlier renovation and felt that it brought a sense of pride to the City.  As the City 
plans to address blighted buildings, he believes it is essential that the City lead the way by repairing their 
own.  Motion by Mr. Elliott to approve the painting bid.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed with a 
roll call vote; all were in favor. 
J. Requesting Permission to Publish Request for Proposals for wood floor restoration at the Depot 
Mr. Wilson reminded council that city staff will be moving back into the Depot soon, and to avoid 
further deterioration of the floors, it would be prudent to refinish them first.  The intent is to protect 
them, not try to restore them to a pristine state.  Due to the prior use of the Depot, that would not be a 
reasonable goal.  Mr. Hildebrand suggested using a pour on epoxy for longevity.  Mr. Wilson will include 
that in the RFP.  Mr. Duffy wondered about including the west end floors, and Mr. Wilson will ask for 
that as a separate item.  Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to publish a Request for Proposals with the discussed 
options.  Support by Mr. Elliott.  Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 



3 
 

Evart City Council Virtual Minutes 4.5.2021 
 

K. Request for Proposal – Security Cameras 
Due to continued vandalism over the years, Mr. Wilson and Chief Beam would like to see a security 
camera system put in place at the Depot, the airport, the Police Department, the wastewater plant, and 
the department of public works building.  Chief Beam prefers a system that can be monitored remotely 
and has room for expansion.  Mr. Elliott hopes the camera at the airport will cover parked planes, and 
believes the city needs camera coverage of the water system.  Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve 
publishing a Request for Proposal for security cameras to include the suggestions discussed.  Support by 
Mr. Elliott.  Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
K1. Community Clean Up Day 
Mr. Wilson reminded council that this event was canceled in 2020 due to COVID concerns. He stated 
that this is not in the current budget and usually costs several thousand dollars.  It was agreed to hold 
the event in early June, to attempt to try to find volunteers to help those needing trash transported, and 
to keep the location at the wastewater plan.  Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve holding a 
community clean up day and authorizing funding not to exceed $6,000.  Support by Mayor Emerick.  
Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
 
Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
L. Accounts Payable Report (3/16/2021 – 4/5/2021) 
M. Payroll Reports (3/16/2021 – 4/5/2021) 
N. Revenue & Expense Report – March 2021 
O. Fire Department Minutes – March 9, 2021 
P.  Fire Department Budget Hearing Minutes – March 9, 2021 
 
City Attorney Report/Comment: none 
City Clerk Report/Comment: none 
City Manager Report/Comment: Ms. Dvoracek reminded council of the meeting with the DDA and 
Dickinson Wright on April 15 (on Zoom from 6-8pm) to discuss the RECODIFIED TAX INCREMENT 
FINANCING ACT Public Act 57 of 2018.  There will be a budget workshop on April 28 at 7:30pm.  She 
announced that Evart has been officially accepted as a Certified Local Government. 
Finance Director Report/Comment: none 
Department of Public Works Report/Comment: none 
Police Department Report/Comment: Chief Beam noted that in preparation for serving blight 
correction notices officers have ben testing various types of stickers.  They have found a product that 
adheres well without damaging the surface it has been attached to. 
Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment:  Ms. Dvoracek noted that the Market Snapshot 
of Evart was received but uses data that is four years old since the 2020 Census figures have not been 
released.  She will share the report with council. 
 
Citizens’ Comments: none 
 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to adjourn.  Support by Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed with a roll call vote; all 
were in favor.  Meeting was adjourned at 9:12pm. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig 
City Clerk 



CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF EVART 1/1Page: 04/16/2021 11:04 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/06/2021 - 04/19/2021

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 751 VENDOR

45.51 OSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER02293842975104/06/2021
181.98 OSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER02293843075104/06/2021

9,068.26 EVART FIRE DEPARTMENT00513843175104/14/2021
2,237.01 EVART PUBLIC LIBRARY06533843275104/14/2021

165.00 80TH AVE. REFINISHING11333843375104/14/2021
2,075.59 FIRST BANKCARD1827563(E)75104/14/2021
1,390.00 BIG RAPIDS CASH & CARRY11303843475104/19/2021

880.00 CCRA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LLC10933843575104/19/2021
608.14 CITY OF EVART00283843675104/19/2021
889.28 CONSUMERS ENERGY00243843775104/19/2021
673.88 DTE ENERGY05763843875104/19/2021
152.20 ECONO SIGNS LLC4213843975104/19/2021

6,024.48 ELLEN'S EQUIPMENT, INC07223844075104/19/2021
100.56 FERGUSON SUPPLY COMPANY04883844175104/19/2021
121.00 FILE SAFE, INC10253844275104/19/2021

12,001.00 GERBER CONSTRUCTION09403844375104/19/2021
700.00 HILYARD TREE SERVICE 11313844475104/19/2021
68.55 HOMETOWN HARDWARE06773844575104/19/2021
360.03 KUBE PROPANE, LLC11193844675104/19/2021
839.82 MENARDS - BIG RAPIDS14393844775104/19/2021
450.00 MUNICODE10503844875104/19/2021
52.25 PIONEER GROUP02553844975104/19/2021

9,758.61 REPUBLIC SERVICES #23918063845075104/19/2021
121.24 SINGLESOURCE LCS06753845175104/19/2021

204,996.84 SLC METER, LLC19803845275104/19/2021
1,301.09 SMITH LUMBER CO01293845375104/19/2021

62.38 XEROX CORPORATION18033845475104/19/2021
213.55 LINGO1043564(E)75104/19/2021
520.54 AMERICAN SPECIALTY PRODUCTS1456565(A)75104/19/2021
90.00 DRUG SCREEN PLUS921566(A)75104/19/2021
957.00 I.T. RIGHT1821567(A)75104/19/2021
40.00 JOHN BEAM JR.1419568(A)75104/19/2021
40.00 SWIFT ECKERT, TERESA2048569(A)75104/19/2021

751 TOTALS:

257,185.79 Total of 33 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
257,185.79 Total of 33 Checks:























CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/5Page
:

04/16/2021 11:05 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/06/2021 - 04/19/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

45.51 701-000-222.121DUE TO COUNTY - TRAILER TAXOSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER3842975104/06/2021

181.98 701-000-222.120DUE TO STATE ED-TRAILER TAXOSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER3843075104/06/2021

9,068.26 704-000-214.481DUE TO FIRE DIST MILLAGEEVART FIRE DEPARTMENT3843175104/14/2021

2,111.83 703-000-214.223DUE TO LIBRARYEVART PUBLIC LIBRARY3843275104/14/2021

125.18 703-000-223.100DUE TO LIBRARY - INTEREST38432

2,237.01 

165.00 207-751-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE80TH AVE. REFINISHING3843375104/14/2021

23.88 101-000-955.000MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSEFIRST BANKCARD563(E)75104/14/2021

39.99 101-101-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES563(E)

28.11 101-172-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT563(E)

313.00 101-172-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAINING563(E)

21.72 101-265-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES563(E)

8.74 101-265-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES563(E)

2.33 101-265-741.000POSTAGE & SHIPPING563(E)

54.40 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONS563(E)

99.00 101-265-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING563(E)

25.71 101-301-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES563(E)

149.98 101-301-745.000FIREARMS563(E)

47.30 101-301-746.000Community Policing Fund563(E)

200.00 101-301-931.000VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE563(E)

(134.65)101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT563(E)

21.72 590-537-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES563(E)

128.93 590-537-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES563(E)

2.33 590-537-741.000POSTAGE & SHIPPING563(E)

54.40 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS563(E)

148.00 590-537-860.000TRAVEL EXPENSES563(E)

225.00 590-537-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAINING563(E)

71.69 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES563(E)

404.92 590-538-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE563(E)

21.72 591-545-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES563(E)

8.75 591-545-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES563(E)

2.34 591-545-741.000POSTAGE & SHIPPING563(E)

54.41 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS563(E)

(140.00)591-545-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAINING563(E)

191.87 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES563(E)

2,075.59 

1,390.00 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEBIG RAPIDS CASH & CARRY3843475104/19/2021

880.00 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESCCRA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES LLC3843575104/19/2021

37.39 101-265-921.000UTILITIESCITY OF EVART3843675104/19/2021

40.87 101-301-921.000UTILITIES38436



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/5Page
:

04/16/2021 11:05 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/06/2021 - 04/19/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

226.40 101-440-921.000UTILITIES38436

20.50 101-442-921.000UTILITIES38436

216.42 207-751-921.000UTILITIES38436

66.56 208-757-921.000UTILITIES38436

608.14 

423.66 101-441-921.000UTILITIESCONSUMERS ENERGY3843775104/19/2021

184.50 101-448-921.000UTILITIES38437

238.23 202-461-921.000UTILITIES38437

42.89 591-546-921.000UTILITIES38437

889.28 

147.21 101-301-921.000UTILITIESDTE ENERGY3843875104/19/2021

222.65 101-440-921.000UTILITIES38438

304.02 590-538-921.000UTILITIES38438

673.88 

152.20 203-460-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESECONO SIGNS LLC3843975104/19/2021

6,024.48 661-599-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESELLEN'S EQUIPMENT, INC3844075104/19/2021

100.56 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEFERGUSON SUPPLY COMPANY3844175104/19/2021

40.33 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESFILE SAFE, INC3844275104/19/2021

40.33 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38442

40.34 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38442

121.00 

12,001.00 590-538-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDGERBER CONSTRUCTION3844375104/19/2021

700.00 101-444-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESHILYARD TREE SERVICE3844475104/19/2021

68.55 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESHOMETOWN HARDWARE3844575104/19/2021

360.03 101-441-921.000UTILITIESKUBE PROPANE, LLC3844675104/19/2021

419.91 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESMENARDS - BIG RAPIDS3844775104/19/2021

419.91 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38447

839.82 

150.00 101-265-807.000MEMBERSHIP AND DUESMUNICODE3844875104/19/2021

150.00 590-537-807.000MEMBERSHIP AND DUES38448

150.00 591-545-807.000MEMBERSHIP AND DUES38448

450.00 

52.25 101-215-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGPIONEER GROUP3844975104/19/2021

129.00 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #2393845075104/19/2021

9,514.61 101-526-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38450



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 3/5Page
:

04/16/2021 11:05 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/06/2021 - 04/19/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

57.50 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38450

57.50 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38450

9,758.61 

21.91 101-265-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSINGLESOURCE LCS3845175104/19/2021

55.50 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38451

21.91 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38451

21.92 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38451

121.24 

204,996.84 591-547-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDSLC METER, LLC3845275104/19/2021

7.59 101-301-931.000VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO3845375104/19/2021

2.00 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38453

165.91 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38453

364.00 202-451-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38453

364.00 203-451-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38453

68.22 207-751-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38453

129.00 590-538-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38453

200.37 591-547-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38453

1,301.09 

62.38 101-301-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGXEROX CORPORATION3845475104/19/2021

142.37 590-538-850.000COMMUNICATIONSLINGO564(E)75104/19/2021

71.18 591-546-850.000COMMUNICATIONS564(E)

213.55 

520.54 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESAMERICAN SPECIALTY PRODUCTS565(A)75104/19/2021

30.00 101-441-840.000PHYSICALS/CDL DRUG TESTINGDRUG SCREEN PLUS566(A)75104/19/2021

30.00 590-537-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING566(A)

30.00 591-545-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TEST566(A)

90.00 

219.00 101-265-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/ITI.T. RIGHT567(A)75104/19/2021

300.00 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT567(A)

219.00 590-537-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT567(A)

219.00 591-545-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT567(A)

957.00 

40.00 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONSJOHN BEAM JR.568(A)75104/19/2021

40.00 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONSSWIFT ECKERT, TERESA569(A)75104/19/2021

257,185.79 TOTAL OF 33 CHECKSTOTAL - ALL FUNDS



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 4/5Page
:

04/16/2021 11:05 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/06/2021 - 04/19/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

         40.33 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-537-801.000

          2.33 POSTAGE & SHIPPING590-537-741.000

        128.93 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-537-740.000

         21.72 OFFICE SUPPLIES590-537-727.000

         66.56 UTILITIES208-757-921.000

        233.22 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE207-751-930.000

        216.42 UTILITIES207-751-921.000

        152.20 OPERATING SUPPLIES203-460-740.000

        364.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE203-451-930.000

        238.23 UTILITIES202-461-921.000

        364.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE202-451-930.000

      9,514.61 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-526-801.000

        184.50 UTILITIES101-448-921.000

        700.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-444-801.000

         20.50 UTILITIES101-442-921.000

        783.69 UTILITIES101-441-921.000

         30.00 PHYSICALS/CDL DRUG TESTING101-441-840.000

        129.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-441-801.000

        221.41 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-441-740.000

      1,492.56 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-440-930.000

        449.05 UTILITIES101-440-921.000

        165.35 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-301-932.000

        207.59 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE101-301-931.000

        188.08 UTILITIES101-301-921.000

         62.38 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-301-900.000

         80.00 COMMUNICATIONS101-301-850.000

         47.30 Community Policing Fund101-301-746.000

        149.98 FIREARMS101-301-745.000

         25.71 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-301-727.000

        219.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-265-932.000

         37.39 UTILITIES101-265-921.000

         99.00 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-265-900.000

         54.40 COMMUNICATIONS101-265-850.000

        150.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-265-807.000

         40.33 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-265-801.000

          2.33 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-265-741.000

         30.65 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.000

         21.72 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-265-727.000

         52.25 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-215-900.000

        313.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-172-957.000

         28.11 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-172-932.000

         39.99 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-101-740.000

         23.88 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE101-000-955.000
--- GL TOTALS --- 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 5/5Page
:

04/16/2021 11:05 AM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/06/2021 - 04/19/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

    257,185.79 TOTAL

      9,068.26 DUE TO FIRE DIST MILLAGE704-000-214.481

        125.18 DUE TO LIBRARY - INTEREST703-000-223.100

      2,111.83 DUE TO LIBRARY703-000-214.223

         45.51 DUE TO COUNTY - TRAILER TAX701-000-222.121

        181.98 DUE TO STATE ED-TRAILER TAX701-000-222.120

      6,024.48 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES661-599-801.000

    204,996.84 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED591-547-970.100

        200.37 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-547-740.000

         42.89 UTILITIES591-546-921.000

         71.18 COMMUNICATIONS591-546-850.000

         57.50 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-546-801.000

      1,222.79 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-546-740.000

       (140.00)EDUCATION AND TRAINING591-545-957.000

        219.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT591-545-932.000

         54.41 COMMUNICATIONS591-545-850.000

         30.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TEST591-545-840.000

        150.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES591-545-807.000

        920.34 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-545-801.000

          2.34 POSTAGE & SHIPPING591-545-741.000

          8.75 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-545-740.000

         21.72 OFFICE SUPPLIES591-545-727.000

     12,001.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED590-538-970.100

        533.92 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE590-538-930.000

        304.02 UTILITIES590-538-921.000

        142.37 COMMUNICATIONS590-538-850.000

         57.50 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-538-801.000

        513.51 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-538-740.000

        225.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING590-537-957.000

        219.00 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT590-537-932.000

        148.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES590-537-860.000

         54.40 COMMUNICATIONS590-537-850.000

         30.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING590-537-840.000

        150.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES590-537-807.000



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 04/06/2021 to 04/19/2021 

04/14/2021 05:22 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 1 of 2

Open0.00118.29118.29MISDU          2315275004/07/2021

Open0.00308.34350.00 ELLIOTT, DANIEL           2315375004/08/2021

Open0.00264.30300.00 EMERICK, CHRISTINA           2315475004/08/2021

Open0.00323.22350.00 HILDEBRAND, MATTHEW           2315575004/08/2021

Open0.00308.34350.00 SZELIGA, SANDY           2315675004/08/2021

Open0.00118.29118.29MISDU          2315775004/14/2021

Cleared719.190.001,096.15 BEAM, JOHN          DD545775004/07/2021

Cleared545.700.00754.00 DOUGLAS, RYAN          DD545875004/07/2021

Cleared547.270.00731.60 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD545975004/07/2021

Cleared1,355.220.001,774.04 DVORACEK, SARAH J         DD546075004/07/2021

Cleared147.400.00167.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD546175004/07/2021

Cleared491.010.00721.60 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD546275004/07/2021

Cleared134.790.00153.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD546375004/07/2021

Cleared789.390.001,025.82 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD546475004/07/2021

Cleared29.660.0032.12 MANEKE, VANESSA S         DD546575004/07/2021

Cleared567.720.00918.80 MARTIN, DALE          DD546675004/07/2021

Cleared558.770.00788.80 MCCLURE, PATRICK K         DD546775004/07/2021

Cleared799.230.001,193.68 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD546875004/07/2021

Cleared529.650.00760.00 ROHEN, MELISSA A         DD546975004/07/2021

Cleared374.630.00411.60 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD547075004/07/2021

Cleared963.050.001,364.16 WILSON, MARK A         DD547175004/07/2021

Cleared486.460.00721.60 ZINGER, ADAM          DD547275004/07/2021

Cleared1,018.030.001,173.33 KIRWIN, DAVID          DD547375004/07/2021

Cleared297.470.00350.00 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD547475004/08/2021

Cleared719.200.001,096.15 BEAM, JOHN          DD547575004/14/2021

Cleared545.710.00754.01 DOUGLAS, RYAN          DD547675004/14/2021

Cleared567.930.00759.04 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD547775004/14/2021

Cleared1,355.210.001,774.04 DVORACEK, SARAH J         DD547875004/14/2021

Cleared147.410.00167.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD547975004/14/2021

Cleared488.180.00721.60 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD548075004/14/2021



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 04/06/2021 to 04/19/2021 

04/14/2021 05:22 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 2 of 2

Cleared374.900.00450.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD548175004/14/2021

Cleared789.380.001,025.82 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD548275004/14/2021

Cleared33.820.0036.63 MANEKE, VANESSA S         DD548375004/14/2021

Cleared565.900.00918.80 MARTIN, DALE          DD548475004/14/2021

Cleared558.770.00788.80 MCCLURE, PATRICK K         DD548575004/14/2021

Cleared850.700.001,269.07 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD548675004/14/2021

Cleared551.640.00788.50 ROHEN, MELISSA A         DD548775004/14/2021

Cleared374.630.00411.60 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD548875004/14/2021

Cleared963.050.001,364.16 WILSON, MARK A         DD548975004/14/2021

Cleared483.710.00721.60 ZINGER, ADAM          DD549075004/14/2021

Open0.002,860.472,860.47FEDERAL 941          EFT56075004/07/2021

Open0.00195.19195.19FEDERAL 941          EFT56175004/07/2021

Open0.00271.01271.01FEDERAL 941          EFT56375004/08/2021

Open0.002,959.412,959.41FEDERAL 941          EFT56475004/14/2021

38

6

Total Check Stubs:

Total Physical Checks:

19,724.787,726.8635,057.40Number of Checks:  044Totals:











Board/Commission Appointee Appointed Expiration Phone # Notes
Building Board of Appeals OPEN
Appointed in April OPEN

OPEN
City Building Inspector non-voting
Three (3) members qualified by 
experience or training; not employed
by city.

Board of Review Karen Higgins 2021 2023 231-734-3301
Appointed in May Donald Maddern 2021 2023 231-734-0141

Ralph Carlson 2021 2023
ALTERNATE  OPEN
City Assessor, clerk of board n/a n/a non-voting

Public Act: Two (2) year terms. 
Assessor serves as Clerk of the BOR.

Cemetery Commission City Council Member Sandy Szeliga 2018 2022
Appointed in June Don Maddern 2020 2025 231-734-0141

Emily Duffy 2021 2024

Section 4.27 of the City Charter: at 
least three (3) members, one (1) of 
whom shall be a member of the City 
Council.    Three year terms.

DDA Lynn Salinas 2014 2024
Appointed in July Alan Bengry 1984 2024 231-734-9178

June Essner 2015 2023
Molly Cataldo 2008 2023 231-510-5390
Jason O'Dell 2015 2021
Shannon Schmidt 2015 2021 231-679-4877
OPEN      
OPEN     
Sarah Dvoracek, City Manager n/a n/a



Eric Kehoe, DDA/MMS Director n/a n/a
Nine members:  One Chief Executive 
of City of Evart
Eight appointed by Mayor and 
approved by City Council (at least half 
of which must have a DDA business 
interest)
Four year terms.

Election Commission Kathy Fiebig, Clerk 2020 2022
Appointed in January, even years Sandy Szeliga 2020 2022

Marsha Warren 2020 2022
Section 3.4 City Charter: One Council 
member, City Clerk and one qualified 
registered elector.

Historic District Commission Kathy Fiebig 2019 2024 269-254-3692
Appointed in August Roger Elkins 2019 2022 231-349-0340

Diane Carlson 2020 2022 231-734-2261
Jenny Joyce 2020 2023 231-912-1483
Karen Higgins 2020 2024 231-734-3301
Per Ordinance: 5 members.  Must
reside within city limits. Three year
terms/staggered.

Historic District Study Committee  Mary Hooper 2019 open ended
Appointed in July Kate Wilson 2019 open ended

Sandy Szeliga 2019 open ended
Alyssa Rosebrugh 2019 open ended
Mark Wilson 2019 open ended
Emily Duffy 2021 open ended

Housing Commission Sandy Szeliga 2012 2026 231-734-3386
Appointed in February Don Maddern 2008 2023 231-734-0141

Joyce Huston (resident) 2017 2025 231-734-1136
Keith Halifax 2017 2022 231-734-2459



Mary Hooper 2017 2024 313-268-6865
Karen Higgins, Director 231-734-3301

276.02 MEMBERS; TERM; 
APPOINTMENT. In accordance with 
Section 4 of said Act 18 of 1933 (Ex. 
Sess.), as amended, the Housing 
Commission shall consist of five 
members to be appointed by the 
Mayor with the approval of the City 
Council. Each of said members shall 
serve for a term of five years and 
until his or her successor shall be 
appointed and qualified. Members of 
the first Commission shall be 
appointed for staggered terms. 4

Library Board Suzanne Bieri 1970 2020 231-734-5211
Appointed in October Rhonda Huff, Secretary 2019 2020

Kathy Elder, Vice President 1996 2021 231-734-5315
Karen Hodges, President 2000 2021 C: 231-734-5743
Sandy Szeliga 2018 2022
Jane Hutchinson, Treasurer 2012 2024 231-734-3159
Lilas VanScoyoc, Librarian C: 231-872-0884 work: 231-734-2993
Two seats each: Osceola Township,
Evart Township, City of Evart

Parks and Recreation Temporary Board
inactive in 2020 Sandy Szeliga 2/5/2018

Dick Witbeck 2/5/2018
Amber Landers 2/5/2018
Matt Hildebrand 2/5/2018
Mark Wilson, Director 2/5/2018
Seven members, three year 
staggered terms



Pay Commission Travis Douglas 2019 2020
appointed in March Mechelle Farrell      2019 2023

Terry Parish 2019 2021
Ralph Carlson 2021 2026
OPEN    
Five Members (Registered electors of 
the City) appointed by the Mayor, 
approved by City Council.  Five Yr 
Staggered terms

 Appointed each year on April l.

Planning Commission Ralph Carlson 2021 2024
Appointed in September Rebecca Tea 2021 2020 231-734-2714

Ruth Ann Northon, Chair 2021 2020 231-734-5519
Jim Schwab 2020 2022
Karen Higgins 2018 2021 231-734-3301
Jason O'Dell 2021 2024 231-734-6184
VACANCY
Sean Duffy (Council Member) 2020 2024
Chris Emerick  (Mayor) 2020 2020
Sarah Dvoracek (City Manger) n/a n/a liaison, non-voting
Mark Wilson (City Admin. Officer) n/a n/a liaison, non-voting

272.02 Members. The Commission 
shall consist of nine (9) members, as 
follows: The Mayor, one (1) 
councilman who shall be appointed 
by the City Council, and seven (7) 
members who shall be appointed by 
the Mayor subject to the approval of 
the City Council. Three year terms.

Zoning Board of Appeals Chris Emerick 2020 2022
Sean Duffy 2020 2024
Matt Hildebrand 2020 2024
Sandy Szeliga 2018 2022



Dan Elliott 2018 2022

City Council Chris Emerick (Mayor) 2020 2022
Sean Duffy 2020 2024
Matt Hildebrand 2018 2024
Sandy Szeliga (Mayor Pro Tem) 2018 2022
Dan Elliott 2018 2022

Council Economic Development City Manager Sarah Dvoracek per Section 4.3 of City Charter
advisory only Assistant City Manager Mark Wilson

Mayor Chris Emerick
Council Member Dan Elliott

Council Labor Relations Mayor Emerick 2020 2022 per Section 4.3 of City Charter
advisory only Matt Hildebrand 2018 2024

Council Police Committee Sandy Szeliga 2018 2022
advisory only Sean Duffy 2020 2024 per Section 4.3 of City Charter

Council Water/Sewer/Street CommitteeMatt Hildebrand 2018 2024 per Section 4.3 of City Charter
advisory only Dan Elliott 2020 2022

City Manager Sarah Dvoracek 6/19/2019 6/19/2025

Assistant City Manager Mark Wilson 12/2/2019 11/30/2024

Chief of Police John Beam 11/5/2018 12/31/2023

Finance Director/Treasurer Pepper Lockhart 9/9/2020 9/8/2025

City Assessor David Kirwin 7/15/2019 3/31/2022

City Attorney James White 11/5/2018 6/30/2026

City Clerk Kathy Fiebig Nov-20 Nov-22



Table 1

Groundwater Analytical Data

City of Evart

DRAFT

Sample ID
Laboratory 

Method
Analyte Matrix

Results 

March 3

Results 

March 10

Results 

March 16

Results 

April 1

Results 

April 12

Results 

April 27

Results 

May 13

Results 

May 23

Results 

June 7

Results 

June 23

Results 

July 8

Results 

July 22

Results 

August 5

Results 

August 26

Results 

Sept 9

Results 

Sept 21

Results 

Oct 4

West Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.13 0.13 0.12 0.11 0.07 0.07 NS 0.14 0.11 0.13 0.21 0.17 0.08 0.09 0.13 0.17 0.32

North Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.6 1.4 NS 2.4 2.7 1.4 0.87 0.56 0.53 0.5 0.85 1.1 1.0 1.1

Well-1 331 Perchlorate Water 11 11 11 10 10 10 11 NS NS 8.3 7.3 7.4 8.5 13 14 11 11

Well-2 331 Perchlorate Water 8.2 7.9 8.4 7.9 11 16 18 19 18 NS NS 20 22 33 36 32 27

duplicate (Well 2) 331 Perchlorate Water ---------- 7.7 8 7.8 9.8 16 18 19 18 NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS

Well-3 331 Perchlorate Water 7.4 6.1 6.3 7.8 11 15 21 26 28 27 29 24 21 22 12 10 7.3

Well-4 331 Perchlorate Water 6.0 6.2 6.2 6.1 5.9 6.1 6.3 6.7 7.4 4.6 5.3 6.4 7.3 6.8 9.0 7.3 6.4

Well-6 331 Perchlorate Water 0.73 0.66 0.61 0.55 0.66 0.72 0.74 0.82 0.74 1.1 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.9 0.97

Hydrant-1 331 Perchlorate Water 0.19 NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS

Hydrant-2 331 Perchlorate Water 6.6 NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS

duplicate (hydrant 2) 331 Perchlorate Water 6.5 ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------

Hydrant-3 331 Perchlorate Water 4.9 NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS

Hydrant-4 331 Perchlorate Water 4.9 NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS NS

Sample ID
Laboratory 

Method
Analyte Matrix

Results 

Oct 21

Results 

Nov 4

Results 

Nov 18

Results 

Dec 2

Results 

Dec 16

Results 

Dec 29

Results 

Jan 13

Results 

Jan 27

Results 

Feb 10

Results 

Feb 24

Results 

Mar 10

Results 

Mar 24

Results 

April 7

Results 

April 21

Results 

May 5
Unit

Detection 

Limit

West Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.31 0.33 0.06 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 0.06 0.06 0.07 0.07 0.06 <0.05 <0.05 ug/L 0.05

North Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.87 0.75 0.67 0.47 0.31 0.19 0.18 0.14 0.15 0.14 0.14 0.16 0.18 0.15 0.14 ug/L 0.05

Well-1 331 Perchlorate Water 8 6.9 5.8 5.0 4.4 3.8 3.3 3.1 2.8 2.9 3.1 3 2.6 2.3 2.2 ug/L 0.05

Well-2 331 Perchlorate Water 22 17 15 14 9.8 9 6.2 6.9 1 1.2 0.99 1.7 1.4 1.4 1.5 ug/L 0.05

Well-3 331 Perchlorate Water 4.1 3.1 2.9 2.7 2.4 2 1.8 1 1.3 1 1 1.4 1 1.2 1.3 ug/L 0.05

Well-4 331 Perchlorate Water 5.9 5.5 4.9 3.7 3.4 3.1 2.6 2.6 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.8 ug/L 0.05

Well-6 331 Perchlorate Water 0.78 0.33 0.39 0.21 0.21 0.12 0.13 0.07 0.57 0.56 0.28 0.97 0.74 0.63 0.58 ug/L 0.05

Sample ID
Laboratory 

Method
Analyte Matrix

Results 

May 17

Results 

May 30

Results 

June 16

Results 

June 27

Results 

July14

Results 

July 27

Results 

Aug 11

Results 

Aug 24

Results 

Sept 8

Results 

Sept 22

Results 

Oct 6

Results 

Oct 20

Results 

Nov 3

Results 

Nov 17

Results 

Dec 1
Unit

Detection 

Limit

West Tower 331 Perchlorate Water <0.05 0.06 0.07 0.09 0.12 0.17 0.19 0.23 0.23 0.09 0.10 0.12 0.15 0.16 0.21 ug/L 0.05

North Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.20 0.23 0.24 0.22 0.27 0.32 0.41 0.46 0.41 0.31 0.26 0.42 0.32 0.29 0.31 ug/L 0.05

Well-1 331 Perchlorate Water 2 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.1 1.0 0.98 0.87 0.83 ug/L 0.05

Well-2 331 Perchlorate Water 2 2.9 2.4 1.8 2.2 2.2 2 1.8 1.6 1.4 0.98 0.64 0.45 0.49 0.54 ug/L 0.05

Well-3 331 Perchlorate Water 1.9 3.5 2 1.4 2.4 2.7 2 1.8 1.7 1.4 1.1 0.84 0.60 0.52 0.62 ug/L 0.05

Well-4 331 Perchlorate Water 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.98 0.97 0.92 0.99 0.87 0.82 ug/L 0.05

Well-6 331 Perchlorate Water 1.5 2.3 2.2 1.2 1.8 2.0 1.5 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.96 0.44 0.23 0.28 0.25 ug/L 0.05

DW - Drinking Water 

NS - Not Sampled

  North Tower not sampled (April 27, 2016) due to maintenance

  West Tower not sampled (May 13, 2016) due to maintenance

  Well-1 not sampled (May 23, 2016 and June 1, 2016) due to maintenance

  Well 2 not sampled (June 23, 2016 and July 8, 2016) due to maintenance

  Well 3 not sampled (April 20, 2018) due to maintenance

2016

2016 2017

2017

1/3



Table 1

Groundwater Analytical Data

City of Evart

DRAFT

Sample ID
Laboratory 

Method
Analyte Matrix

Results 

Dec 15

Results 

Dec 27

Results 

Jan 12

Results 

Jan 26

Results 

Feb 7

Results 

Feb 23

Results 

March 9

Results 

March 23

Results 

April 6

Results 

April 20

Results 

May 4

Results 

May 22

Results 

June 8

Results 

June 22

Results 

July 6
Unit

Detection 

Limit

West Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.24 0.18 0.38 0.09 0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 0.05 0.08 0.14 0.19 0.13 ug/L 0.05

North Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.31 0.30 0.32 0.21 0.16 0.11 0.08 0.07 0.08 0.08 0.09 0.09 0.09 0.12 0.13 ug/L 0.05

Well-1 331 Perchlorate Water 0.74 0.67 0.63 0.61 0.60 0.74 0.67 0.62 0.46 0.41 0.40 0.39 0.37 0.34 0.36 ug/L 0.05

Well-2 331 Perchlorate Water 0.53 0.47 0.48 0.42 0.53 0.53 0.62 0.55 0.60 0.41 0.40 0.43 0.51 0.50 0.52 ug/L 0.05

Well-3 331 Perchlorate Water 0.55 0.56 0.56 0.53 0.62 1.4 1.7 1.4 0.80 NS 0.65 0.47 0.64 0.67 0.68 ug/L 0.05

Well-4 331 Perchlorate Water 0.71 0.72 0.86 0.76 0.80 0.76 0.78 0.77 0.76 0.73 0.65 0.60 0.57 0.54 0.57 ug/L 0.05

Well-6 331 Perchlorate Water 0.29 0.27 0.33 0.24 0.28 0.37 0.30 0.41 0.37 0.19 0.18 0.14 0.12 0.15 0.14 ug/L 0.05

Sample ID
Laboratory 

Method
Analyte Matrix

Results 

July 20

Results 

Aug 6

Results 

Aug 21

Results 

Sept 7

Results 

Sept 24

Results 

Oct 19

Results 

Nov 16

Results 

Dec 14

Results 

Jan 18

Results 

Feb 22

Results 

Mar 19

Results 

Apr 19

Results 

May 14

Results 

June 14

Results 

July 12
Unit

Detection 

Limit

West Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.15 0.20 0.26 0.37 0.17 NS 0.22 0.08 0.13 0.07 <0.05 0.05 0.06 0.16 0.11 ug/L 0.05

North Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.16 0.29 0.34 0.38 0.40 0.18 0.12 0.11 0.13 0.30 0.10 <0.05 <0.05 0.11 0.12 ug/L 0.05

Well-1 331 Perchlorate Water 0.36 0.37 NS 0.34 NS 0.27 0.30 0.32 0.29 0.29 0.28 0.25 0.25 0.21 0.21 ug/L 0.05

Well-2 331 Perchlorate Water 0.55 0.50 0.47 0.33 0.44 0.30 0.33 0.34 0.29 0.27 0.13 0.19 0.21 0.21 0.33 ug/L 0.05

Well-3 331 Perchlorate Water 0.75 0.71 0.70 0.65 0.62 0.47 0.54 0.51 0.42 0.40 0.22 0.27 0.34 0.42 0.49 ug/L 0.05

Well-4 331 Perchlorate Water 0.56 0.57 0.62 0.67 0.65 0.66 0.72 0.63 0.58 0.54 0.52 0.53 0.48 0.40 0.40 ug/L 0.05

Well-6 331 Perchlorate Water 0.13 0.12 0.14 0.19 0.07 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 ug/L 0.05

Sample ID
Laboratory 

Method
Analyte Matrix

Results 

Aug 23

Results 

Sept 19

Results 

Oct 22

Results 

Nov 20

Results 

Dec 18

Results 

Jan 22

Results 

Feb 20

Results 

Mar 19

Results 

Apr 21

Results 

May 18

Results 

June 24

Results 

July 20

Results 

Aug 26

Results 

Sept 23

Results 

Oct 21
Unit

Detection 

Limit

West Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.29 0.08 0.12 0.14 0.06 <0.05 <0.05 0.07 0.10 <0.05 0.14 0.35 0.18 0.20 0.28 ug/L 0.05

North Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.24 0.16 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.08 0.08 0.10 0.10 0.12 0.15 0.28 0.32 0.50 0.43 ug/L 0.05

Well-1 331 Perchlorate Water 0.21 0.20 0.21 0.19 0.19 0.23 0.25 0.25 0.30 0.28 0.27 0.26 0.23 0.22 0.21 ug/L 0.05

Well-2 331 Perchlorate Water 0.34 0.30 0.23 0.20 0.21 0.18 0.23 0.22 0.31 0.28 0.25 0.24 0.41 0.27 0.21 ug/L 0.05

Well-3 331 Perchlorate Water 0.61 0.47 0.38 0.28 0.29 0.26 0.34 0.40 0.42 0.33 0.44 0.42 0.48 0.38 0.29 ug/L 0.05

Well-4 331 Perchlorate Water 0.38 0.39 0.39 0.39 0.38 0.34 0.32 0.31 0.27 0.26 0.28 0.28 0.30 0.32 0.33 ug/L 0.05

Well-6 331 Perchlorate Water <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 NS <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 0.12 0.15 ug/L 0.05

DW - Drinking Water 

NS - Not Sampled

  Well 1 not sampled (August 21, 2018 and September 24, 2018) due to maintenance 

  West Tower not sampled (October 19, 2018) due to maintenance

  Well 6 not sample February 20, 2020 due to maintenance

2019

2018

2017 2018

2019

2020

2/3



Table 1

Groundwater Analytical Data

City of Evart

DRAFT

Sample ID
Laboratory 

Method
Analyte Matrix

Results 

Nov 17

Results 

Dec 16

Dec 16 

Treated 

Water

Results 

Jan 20

Results 

Feb 17

Results 

Mar 24
Unit

Detection 

Limit

West Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.36 0.16 0.08 0.07 0.09 ug/L 0.05

North Tower 331 Perchlorate Water 0.43 0.20 0.16 0.12 0.10 ug/L 0.05

Well-1 331 Perchlorate Water 0.20 0.19 0.41 0.19 0.20 0.22 ug/L 0.05

Well-2 331 Perchlorate Water 0.19 0.18 0.16 0.15 0.13 ug/L 0.05

Well-3 331 Perchlorate Water 0.22 0.21 0.27 0.17 0.17 0.15 ug/L 0.05

Well-4 331 Perchlorate Water 0.37 0.38 0.43 0.39 0.45 0.56 ug/L 0.05

Well-6 331 Perchlorate Water 0.14 0.11 0.31 0.07 <0.05 0.05 ug/L 0.05

2020 2021

3/3



Great Assets Require Great Rates 8~ Carl Brown t46l~
This ankle originally appeared in Wafer Utility infrastructure Management January February 2009 and is re-printed with permission.

You can have great rates and greatassets. Or you an accountant, a free service provider from an
can have great rates and bad assets. But you can’t association or state agency or even the city or district
have bad rates and great assets. At least, not over the clerk or finance director. Choose this person based on
long haul. the system’s needs and their ability to fulfill them,

That is the crux of our asset management notjust on availability. Rate analysis is complex and
problem—oui rates are just too low. To use the you want to get it right. It will be the underpinning
“which came first, the chicken or the egg” barnyard for everything else you do.
analogy, rates are the chicken, assets are the egg. I Rate analysis is voodoo to ratepayers. It’s almost
don’t know which came first, but I do know where as unknowable to many city and district decision
assets come from. makers and staff, too. That’s OK.Where arespecialists,

If you are to set great rates for your system, or who know how to do rateanalysis. Rate setting—the
if you are to help your client do so, there is a facet political process—is viewed by many ratepayers as
of human nature that you need to respect. That is, dark, mysterious, even clandestine. Some boards
given the choice between forward looking asset and councils don’t do a good job of dispelling that
management at responsible current and long-term impression; but they need to if they want to be
rates and short-term adequate management at a cheap successful.
current rate, ratepayers will usually choose cheap. The best way to bring ratepayers around to
Why? You can put it many ways but to put it bluntly, acceptinghigher andrestructured rates is to make the
we all want what we can get or keep now more than analysis as mathematically defensible yet as easy to
what we can get or keep later, even if later is better understand as possible whilemaking theratesetting
for us. We are “me” and “now” centered.That’s not a process as transparent as possible. Ratepayers can’t
slam on human nature.All of nature has that outlook, accept what they don’t know. They can’t know what

It actually takes books full of psychology to is hidden from them.
explain this and related principles, but you understand There are many aspects to great rate setting. One
them intuitively. Does human nature preclude us from key is this. Set your rate setting goals before trying
selling the notion of advanced asset management? No. to set your rates. Why bother with working out goals
But, we must prove to ratepayers that it is in their own ahead of time? If you don’t set goals first and have
self interest to fund well managed assets. (almost) everyone buy into those goals, you WILL

Most ratepayers are,quiët affd cool headëU and have people try to shoot down proposed rates later.
will follow a reasoned approach fairly willingly. They might succeed.
Some—the CAVE people want to organize the Consideradoptinganordinanceorresolutionthat
cool heads against you and kill whatever you have in makes this goal statement: “The [council board] of
mind.(CAvurCitizensAgainstVirtuallyEverything.) [your city] resolves to set and maintain utility rates
To prevent them from doing that you need to use a and fees that are airly structured for the ratepayers
well planned and executed approach to rate setting j,and high enough toadequately fund the system on a
Here is a strategy to consider: sustainable basis.”

Rate setting needs to happen in two distinctly! By adopting such a goal statement you will have
(different parts. Part1.is analysis. Part 2 is the political something to point to if someone tries to highjack the
processof passing an ordinance anSãllihat goes wiih rate setting process or balk at paying rates that will
it The same people can do both parts, but if they adequately fund the utility.And, here’s a helpful hint:
do, some of the ratepayers will think the “fix is in.” You can’t wait until you hit a rate increase logjam
Many will think and some will even ask, “Were the and then try to adopt the goal statement after-the-
proposed rates cooked up to serve some under-handed fact. Those who don’t want their rates to go up will
purpose?” Your answer must be this: simply see this as an “end around” play. “You must

“The rate analysis and rate setting.processes were adopt your goal statement BEFORE setting out to
two distinct-parts of the rat6setting puzzle.They were lanalyzeand adjust rates~”
done by completely different people. The rate analyst We need to teach our ratepayers how to best
did the ‘math’. We, your elected officials,did the rate satisfy their selfish interests concerning Utility
setting basedon the analysis results.” services.The firststep is acceptable rates. The second-

Only the board or council can pass the rate is advanced asset management or something close
ordinance. They should do so based upon information to it.
and advice provided by the rate analyst who is not a Rate setting iii~liTdes these four basic phases:
member of the board or council. The analyst might be goal setting, analysis, initial adjustment, and future
an actual rate setting specialist, a consulting engineer, incremental adjustments. Simple to state and simple

5



Continued. . . Great Assets Require Great Rates

in concept, these steps cover critical and sometimes
complex issues that need to be executed correctly.

It seems like many people want to dumb down
rate settingby skipping many important issues.They
just want to boot up a simple tool or spreadsheet, plug
in a few numbers or answer a few basic questions and,
BAM, they’ve got great rates. It just doesn’t happen
that way. While some of these tools can do the number
crunching well ,you need to plug in the right numbers
and need to understand the rate setting process and
your ratepayers to actually get the rate iiic?ease
passid. Your goal may not be headline-making, rate
setting success. But, there is no alternative to learning
some basics about rate setting even if you only want
to keep your name out of expose’articles about rate
setting shenanigans. -

Time is your enemy. Time robs rate sitters of
their momentum to get the rate setting jOb doffe.

ime robs rate increases of their ability to boost net.
revenue. Time is exattly why we have a fundiWggip
in water and sewer that is measured in the hundreds
of billions of ‘dollars.

Rate setting is a thankless Cob. No board or
council rea y wants to •o it. us, they put it off.

yen w en ey get started ey . iscover rou. esome
issues, i et ene~. torai - -. es ei:timean. how
ratepayers feel about that. They have lots o reasons

is. on istas
Other reasons pop up to halt the task midway.

Even when boards and councils know what rate
a. p - are esitant abou

e ::er. on a rae increase, very time
one of these time t~asterW~öps up remember this
mantra, “Just get on with it.” Put our head down 4—.
andchar:e~ eat

you pass a rate increase ordinance after six
months of deliberation you will feel justifiably
relieved. You will be thinking, “Fi
solved our income •roblem.” Not completely. If
you need rates that will generate an annual revenue
increase of, for example, $520,000, by waiting six
months to get it done you wi cost your system
$10,000 per week of deliberation and $260,000 all
together.

Before “deliberating” about rates you need to
ask yourselves,” i we i ye e .uality o our
• ecision’ more than x,xxx r week or are wejust
cutting off a •istas e u .s . (Your aria yst s ou
tell you w at your time cost Is.) Usually boards and
councils are not actually refining eir •eci en
•unng a i - - ag. ey are just not pu ing e
ngger on a •ecision tha .s a rea.y c--n mace or

a cou . e mar quic yi eyjus go onwi Lt.

Thus, time costs you money. You’ve heard that

Once you pass that big increase the next thing you
think is, “I sure am glad that is done. I hope I don’t
have to do that again.” If you pass an inflationary rate
increase next year and each year that there is inflation
in the cost to run the system, you probably WON’T
have to do a big increase again. But if you don’t keep
our rates current with inflationary incr- . se , ter

on y ye years of inflation at 5 . - rcent ou will n
a rate increase of 27.6 percent . ue to come unding.

years e increase ‘-comes . .‘ percent. n
these increases don’t cover new needs like system
upgrades and expansions. Do inflation, increases -

annuall and ou will ‘robably never .reside over
a ig increase a am. Your ratepayers will like that.

n summary, there is much more that you need
to know to get and keep great rates rates that are
adequate and fair. But always keep the basics in mind.
You need to set goals, analyze rates, make the mi •. -

~. ig increase and restructuri v., and kee’ rates current
every year. Educate and bring your ra epayers along
an. you will have great rates. Great assets will soon
follow

EDITOR’S NOTE: This article originally
appeared in Water Utility Infrastructure Management

— d is being re-printed with permission; visit his
website for a full list of products and tools available.

Carl Brown is presidentof Carl Brown Consulting,
LLC and GettingGreatRates.com.

RATE SETTING
PHASES

Phase 1 — Decide your rate and fee
goals—your destination.

Phase 2 — Develop your own or “buy”
a comprehensive rate analysis—a
map—that leads to your goals.
Usually this requires large initial
rate adjustments and rate structure
changes.

Phase 3 — Actually make those initial
rate adjustments.

Phase 4 — Make incremental rate
adjustments in future years course
corrections that are almost always
small increases—to keep net revenues
and other financial indicators on
track with the projections from the
comprehensive rate analysis for as
long as possible.

befoFe.























 

 

 

Evart Police Department 
Monthly Report 

March 2021 

 
TRAININGS 

Chief Beam attended a two-day Armorer course at the Cadillac Police Department. 

All Officers completed a one-hour web-based refresher course on the use of speed measurement radar. 

 

Public Relations 

Officer Ryan Douglas assisted Fire Chief Shane Helper with training the Reed City Boy Scout Troop in CPR and AED use. 

Osceola County Emergency Services reminder! 

Annual reminder - local public safety agencies have established the following Security Levels for Osceola County. 
Please help local police, 911, fire, medical, and emergency management in their ongoing safety efforts by reviewing 

this information and integrating it into your home and business disaster plans.  
 

This common framework allows response agencies, businesses, schools, and the community be on the 'same page' and 
greatly speed up initial response actions, notification messages, and communications. 

 

 

Department Roster 
Title Name Badge Number 

Chief of Police John Beam Jr. 39-01 

K9-Officer Patrick McClure 39-K9 

Police Officer Ryan Douglas 39-04 

Part Time Police Officer JJ Higgins 39-06 

Part Time Police Officer Johnnie Daniels 39-03 

Reserve Officer Daniel Winters 39-14 



 CRIME REPORT  

 TOTAL ACTIVITIES  

OFFICER TOTAL ACTIVITIES 

Beam, John Jr. 161 

Douglas, Ryan 175 

Higgins, JJ 105 

McClure, Patrick 63 

TOTAL: 504 
 

 

   

 ARRESTS  

OFFICER NUMBER OF ARRESTS 

Douglas, Ryan 1 

Higgins, JJ 0 

Beam, John Jr. 0 

McClure, Patrick 2 

TOTAL: 3 
 

 

   

 ASSISTS  

AGENCY NUMBER OF ASSISTS 

Assist Citizen 8 

Assist DHS 3 

Assist Evart Public School 33 

Assist MIC Unit 8 

Assist OCSD 5 

Assist Police Agency 4 

Motorist Assist 1 

TOTAL: 62 
 

 



 

 ACCIDENTS  

TYPE NUMBER OF ACCIDENTS 

Accident - Hit and Run 1 

Accident - PD 1 

TOTAL: 2 
 

   

     

 TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS  

OFFICER Traffic 
Complaint/Hazard 

Traffic Stop 
Citation 

Traffic Stop 
Verbal Warning 

Beam, John Jr. 4 1 4 

Douglas, Ryan 0 0 8 

McClure, Patrick 0 1 3 

TOTAL: 4 2 15 
 

  

     

 ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS   

OFFICER ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS ORDINANACE COUNT 

Beam, John Jr. Ordinance Citation 2 

Beam, John Jr. Ordinance Violation - Warning 7 

Douglas, Ryan Ordinance Violation - Warning 5 

TOTAL: 14 
 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda April 19, 2021.pdf
	B. Council Minutes 4.5.21.pdf
	C. Vendors List 4.19.21.pdf
	F. Resolution 2021-07 Appointing Sarah Dvoracek as the Planning and Zoning Administrator (1).pdf
	G. Resolution 2021-08 Appointing Sarah Dvoracek as the Airport Manager.pdf
	H. Resolution 2021-09 Appointing Sarah Dvoracek as the Planning and Zoning Administrator (3).pdf
	I. Resolution 2021-10 To Extend Waiving Penalty-Late Fees for UB.pdf
	K. Accounts Payable Report 4.19.21.pdf
	L. Payroll Report.pdf
	M. Summary of all Funds - March 2021.pdf
	N. Boards and Commissions - Working Copy.pdf
	O. Perchlorate 2016 - 2021.pdf
	P. Great Assests Require Great Rates - Rate Study Article.PDF
	Q. Memo from Neslte Waters.pdf
	R. City of Evart - Local Local Government Certification.pdf
	S. Finance Directors Monthly Report - March 2021.pdf
	T. DPW Monthly Report - March 2021.pdf
	U. Police Dept. March 2021 Monthly Report.pdf

